

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Sixty-fifth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, February 23, 2017

The House convened at 8:00 a.m., with Speaker Bellew presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rep. Kathy Hogan.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Boschee, Guggisberg, B. Koppelman, Kreidt, and Simons.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

Announcement

Rep. Vigesaa: Monday, January 16, 2017, was Martin Luther King, Jr. Day and Monday, February 20, 2017, was George Washington's Birthday, both official state holidays. Both days are paid holidays for most state employees. Legislative Assembly employees were required to work on Martin Luther King, Jr. Day and George Washington's Birthday. The Legislative Assembly will be in recess on Monday and Tuesday, February 27-28, 2017. Legislative Assembly employees will be paid for those 2 days.

Employees of the House have worked many hours of uncompensated overtime since the session began. In recognition of the uncompensated overtime, employees will be paid for Friday, February 24, 2017, even though the House will be in recess on that day.

REQUEST

REP. VIGESAA REQUESTED that his remarks be printed in the Journal, which request was granted on a voice vote.

MOTION

REP. VIGESAA MOVED that SB 2131 be returned to the House floor from the **Judiciary Committee** and be rereferred to the **Human Services Committee**, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Pursuant to Rep. Vigesaa's motion, SB 2131 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. VIGESAA MOVED that SB 2141 be returned to the House floor from the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee** and be rereferred to the **Human Services Committee**, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Pursuant to Rep. Vigesaa's motion, SB 2141 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. VIGESAA MOVED that SB 2172 be returned to the House floor from the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee** and be rereferred to the **Human Services Committee**, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Pursuant to Rep. Vigesaa's motion, SB 2172 was rereferred.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1012: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of human services; to authorize the department of human services to convey land in Walsh County; to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to Medicaid expansion; to repeal section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the Medicaid expansion program; to provide for exemptions; to provide statements of legislative intent; to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide for a legislative management study; to provide appropriations; to provide an expiration date; to provide a contingent

effective date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 83 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Blum; Boe; Boehning; Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Sanford; Satrom; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Schreiber-Beck; Seibel; Skroch; Steiner; Streyle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke

NAYS: Becker, Rick C.; Johnston; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Simons; Speaker Bellew

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

Engrossed HB 1012 passed and the emergency clause was declared carried.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1032: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to provider reimbursement rates for the Medicaid expansion program.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 0 YEAS, 89 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boe; Boehning; Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Schreiber-Beck; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streyle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke; Speaker Bellew

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

HB 1032 failed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1033: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cost-sharing under the Medicaid expansion program; and to provide a statement of legislative intent.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 2 YEAS, 87 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Keiser; Mock

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boe; Boehning; Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Schreiber-Beck; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streytle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke; Speaker Bellew

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

HB 1033 failed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1034: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the provider reimbursement rates under the Medicaid expansion program; and to provide for a report to the legislative management.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 0 YEAS, 89 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boe; Boehning; Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Schreiber-Beck; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streytle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke; Speaker Bellew

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

HB 1034 failed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1259: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to medicaid expansion; to provide an expiration date; to provide a contingent expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 0 YEAS, 89 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boe; Boehning; Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Schreiber-

Beck; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streyle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke; Speaker Bellew

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

Reengrossed HB 1259 failed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1115: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 50-24.4-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to actual allowable historical property costs; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 23-09.3-01.1, subsection 1 of section 23-16-01.1, subsection 3 of section 50-24.4-06; subsection 6 of section 50-24.4-07; section 50-24.4-10; and subsection 1 of 50-24.4-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the moratoria on basic care and nursing facility bed capacity and ratesetting for nursing homes.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 23 YEAS, 66 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Boe; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Headland; Heinert; Laning; Marschall; Nathe; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Schatz; Schmidt; Schobinger; Weisz; Speaker Bellew

NAYS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boehning; Bosch; Delmore; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hogan; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos; Martinson; McWilliams; Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; O'Brien; Oliver; Olson; Pyle; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom; Schneider; Schreiber-Beck; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streyle; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Westlind; Zubke

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, P.; Boschee; Guggisberg; Koppelman, B.; Kreidt

Reengrossed HB 1115 failed.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1001, HB 1002, HB 1003, HB 1004, HB 1005, HB 1007, HB 1008, HB 1009, HB 1010, HB 1011, HB 1014, HB 1016, HB 1017, HB 1020, HB 1021, HB 1022, HB 1023, HB 1244, HB 1324.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HCR 3019.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1006, HB 1013, HB 1018, HB 1019.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1012.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, the emergency clause failed, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1015.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (SHANDA MORGAN, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed, and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2044, SB 2166, SB 2314, SB 2342.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (SHANDA MORGAN, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2004, SB 2024, SB 2344.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (SHANDA MORGAN, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed, unchanged: HB 1051, HB 1086, HB 1087, HB 1088, HB 1089, HB 1092, HB 1093, HB 1094, HB 1095, HB 1099.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (SHANDA MORGAN, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed, unchanged: HB 1101, HB 1104, HB 1105.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1109, HB 1112, HB 1117, HB 1118, HB 1125, HB 1127, HB 1131, HB 1132, HB 1135.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (SHANDA MORGAN, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1109, HB 1112, HB 1117, HB 1118, HB 1125, HB 1127, HB 1131, HB 1132, HB 1135.

MOTION

REP. VIGESAA MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

MOTION

REP. VIGESAA MOVED that the House be on the Fourth, Fifth, Ninth, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Friday, February 24, 2017, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2030, as engrossed: Education Committee (Rep. Owens, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2030 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2048, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2048 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2087: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends **DO NOT PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2087 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2091: Education Committee (Rep. Owens, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2091 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2092, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2092 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2095: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2095 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2100, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO NOT PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT

VOTING). Engrossed SB 2100 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2103: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2103 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2105: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2105 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after the second "to" insert "chapter 10-04 and a new section to"

Page 1, line 2, after "of" insert "agent or investment adviser representatives and"

Page 1, line 2, after "records" insert "; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 26.1-02-30 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemption of personal, financial, or health records"

Page 1, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 10-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Agent or investment adviser representative records - Exempt record.

The home address of an agent or investment adviser representative received by the commissioner is an exempt record as defined in section 44-04-17.1.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-02-30 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. As used in this section, "personal, financial, or health information" means ~~information collected from or on behalf of an individual requesting consumer assistance which~~that would reveal:
 - a. ~~The~~An individual's personal health condition, disease, or injury;
 - b. The existence, nature, source, or amount of ~~the~~an individual's personal income;
 - c. The existence, nature, source, or amount of ~~the~~an individual's personal expenses;
 - d. Records of or relating to ~~the~~an individual's personal financial transactions of any kind;
 - e. The existence, identification, nature, or value of ~~the~~an individual's personal assets, liabilities, or net worth;
 - f. A history of ~~the~~an individual's personal medical diagnosis or treatment;
 - g. The existence, identification, nature, value, or content of ~~the~~an individual's coverage or status under any insurance policy;
 - h. ~~The~~An individual's personal contractual rights or obligations; or
 - i. Any social security number, date of birth, file number, bank account number, or other number used for identification of ~~the~~an individual or any account in which ~~the~~an individual has a personal financial interest."

Page 1, line 6, after "**Exempt**" insert "**record**"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2108: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2108 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2109: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2109 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2112: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2112 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2114: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2114 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2118: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2118 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2122: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2122 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2126: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2126 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2127, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (10 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2127 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 8, replace "eighteen" with "twenty-four"

Page 1, line 10, replace "chapters" with "chapter"

Page 1, line 13, replace "eighteen" with "twenty-four"

Page 1, line 17, replace "December 31" with "July 1"

Page 1, line 17, replace "2018" with "2019"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2128: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2128 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2129, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).

Engrossed SB 2129 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2140: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2140 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2213: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1, 2, and 3 of section 10-31-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to annual reports of professional organizations.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**.

SB 2273: A BILL for an Act to provide for a legislative management study relating to fees charged by county directors of tax equalization for property records.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Finance and Taxation Committee**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Vigesaa's motion.

Buell J. Reich, Chief Clerk